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2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee - Human Resources Division 
Sakakawea Room, State Capitol 
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1/8/2019 

30564 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk: Caitlin Fleck  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Overview  
 

Minutes:                                                 A 

 
Begin with introduction and name of bill.  
 
Scott Davis, Executive Director of the North Dakota Indian Affairs Commission: (see 
attachment A)  
(10.10) Introduce staff and explanation of employment position  
-Brad Hawk, American Indian Health Systems Administrator 
-Erica Thunder, Judicial Systems Administrator  
-Marietta Kemmet, Executive Administrative Assistant to the Executive Director 
-Leah McCloud, Data Specialist, PTE 
 
(13.45) Chairman Jon O. Nelson: One of the things we did in the last session is the 
coordinated plan discussion, what is the progress with the discussions in this tribal nations 
in that area?  
 
(14.45) Mr. Hawk: It’s been a long process so far, we started discussions with Standing Rock 
Sioux tribe because they have an ND and a SD tribe and they have already gone through 
this process with the SD side. We decided to start with them to see what they say. We 
discussed with Sanford Health and St. Alexus as the main providers, and have agreements 
with these two foundations. There are discussions about sharing information and if the 
provider here will be able to communicate back to the representative in the HIS facility. 
There’s discussion about how the Medicaid claim will come back to the services. There is a 
bill being presented that will discuss how the money will be split out and distributed.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: Do you have a bill number?  
 
Mr. Hawk: No, but representative Kaiser is carrying the bill  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: I will speak with him.  
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(20.22) Mr. Davis: (Back to attachment A)  
 
(27.45) Chairman Jon O. Nelson: Do you have a spreadsheet of the businesses 
established?  
 
Mr. Davis: yes, we have a huge spreadsheet of everything appropriated to every business. 
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: Include the employees that helped with this too. 
 
Mr. Davis: We will get that to you. 
 
(28.45) Mr. Davis: (back to attachment A)  
 
(31.42) Vice Chairman Gary Kreidt: Is the youth leadership academy (60,000) included in 
your operating expenses? Will that be continued this summer?  
 
Mr. Davis: Yes, and yes. 
 
Discussed future meeting times and closed meeting. 



2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee - Human Resources Division 
Sakakawea Room, State Capitol 

HB1005 
1/21/2019 

31080 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk: Caitlin Fleck  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Detailing the budget.  
 
 

Minutes:                                                 A,B 

 
Took Roll.  
 
Scott Davis, Executive Director of the ND Indian Affairs Commission: (See attachment 
A)  
 
(3.15) Chairman Jon O. Nelson: Talk about some of the accomplishments or goals of the 
business office?  
 
Mr. Davis: The office of development spurred to increase productivity throughout the 
reservation lands. IT’s mainly about private sector jobs on and off the reservation. We have 
also created a ND Indian Business Alliance (IBA). It is an alliance to go to for help when in 
need of funding. We also partner with other foundations and other IBAs. It is a good place to 
go for funding for certain businesses. We are governed by our own Indian Alliance board.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: Could you provide us that directory? 
 
Mr. Davis: Yes.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: That would be good information to have, because I’m sure there 
are some that I don’t even know exist.  
 
Mr. Davis: Another goal that we have is to identify how to do business on the tribe. There 
are a lot of different rules that may be seen as risky from a banking side. Some of our tribes 
need some help and equity and we work to make that happen. We make sure that these 
tribes that want to gain funding have their UCC code in place.  
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(10.58) Chairman Jon O. Nelson: So the 5% reduction the governor asked for is out of this 
tribal fun. Are you going to be able to regain that or how is that going to go forward with that 
reduction?  
 
Mr. Davis: We have an executive director that serves for that position. I think that we are 
going to cut that position to part time or even half time. Having it be full time may not be the 
best use for that position. I think that it could be better used as half time or even quarter time. 
I think we will be ok with that reduction.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: There really isn’t much of a difference I don’t think. The 4% that 
the governor suggested I think will go down to a 2 and 2%.  
 
Mr. Davis: If any of you have been in business before, you know that it is hard to find and 
keep good employees. The benefit packages and raises are crucial for that too. I understand, 
but we have to have those benefit packages in place or else the employees are going to go 
other places instead. These are things that a degree will not teach. We learn so much during 
session, about people, and laws and codes and the way the government is run.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: You lost an FTE last session, can you tell us what the individual 
did and how you were able to downsize with that and continue to serve your people?  
 
(18.15) Mr. Davis: Through the allotment process, we had to identify another allotment and 
decided to look at the education section. We looked at what Department of Public Instruction 
(DPI) does and figured that there could be some redundancy there with my education full 
time employee (FTE). We had that discussion of redundancy and duplication of services, we 
had to cut that FTE. We are doing fine with that. The education through DPI is running just 
fine and we are working well with that. We have one of the most lean budgets in the state, 
but also one of the most challenging offices to take care of.  
 
(22.28) Chairman Jon O. Nelson: I think that it should be recognized that of all the areas of 
expertise that you have talked about this morning, you’ve never once talked about 
engineering. I think that with your bridge building, you have impressed many of us here in 
this session. I think that the footings in our relationship are very solid, and I thank you for 
your leadership in that.  
 
Representative Richard G. Holman: I used to teach the North Plains Indian studies core 
course for teachers. Many people don’t understand that we have different histories and 
different tribes, and that ceremony last week identifies that. With 9% of our state being tribal 
members, I think that is a significant part of our population. Thank you for any part that you 
had in that ceremony.  
 
Vice Chairman Gary Kreidt: You talked about temporary employment in your budget, I’d 
assume that you pull that out of your salaries, what is that number for that temporary 
employee?  
 
Mr. Davis: I always hire a temporary position during this time. Larry Martin, OMB, is really 
good at helping us with that and being honest with us as to what we can do and what we 
can’t do.  
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Vice Chairman Gary Kreidt: So do you have that temporary position all year around?  
 
Mr. Davis: No she works about 30 hours a week and we’re hoping that she can stay for the 
rest of session.  
 
Vice Chairman Gary Kreidt: Do you have the number?  
 
Larry Martin, Office of Management and Business: In the current request, it is 30,800 for 
the whole biennium. 
 
Vice Chairman Gary Kreidt: So what the governor is proposing, is about a 30,000 increase 
in your salary line, so the temp would eat up your 30,000 increase? 
 
Mr. Martin: The 34,000 increase is just a comp package, the 30,000 is still in the budget.  

 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: What is your perspective as to the importance of the 10% 
transfer?  
 
Mr. Davis: I think that with that transfer authority, for the small agency I don’t think it will 
make or break anything. I could see how it would really help some of the larger agencies. I 
see how that is beneficial to do some of that within the agency.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: In your office, if there is a project that goes outside the line of the 
budget, how would you see that transfer of 10% help you in your particular office?  
 
Mr. Martin: I could see that if they had an employee leave, and they couldn’t hire another 
one, they’d have to contract the position out. Their lines are so tight that they would have to 
transfer funds from salaries to operating to cover a contract services. In the current 
environment, they would have to go to an emergency commission and get approval to do 
that transfer. Whereas if they had that authority in their bill, they could have the authority to 
do that transfer up to 10% without having to go to an emergency commission to be approved.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: Can you think of an example where there isn’t a staffing change?  
 
Mr. Martin: If they had some extra money in the salary line, and maybe they wanted to 
contract another person to do some data work they could make that transfer to operating to 
do that.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: And under the existing circumstances, they could do that if they 
went to the emergency commission?  
 
Mr. Martin: Yes, the language that we put into the bill is similar to the legislative side and the 
judicial side. We are just trying to get everyone up to that same level or transfer authority.  
 
Vice Chairman Gary Kreidt: Have you ever had to go to the emergency commission, and 
was that a severe hardship?  
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Mr. Davis: No, I’ve never had to go. We have a running check book that we do monthly. I go 
back to our audits and how we do things.  
 
Vice Chairman Gary Kreidt: You mentioned that we do have some budgets that already 
have this 10% transfer authority?  
 
Mr. Martin: Yes.  
 
Vice Chairman Gary Kreidt: Can we get a list of those?  
 
Mr. Martin: Yes, I will get you that.  
 
(35.54) Representative Randy A. Schobinger: The last green sheets that I have are of 
January 8, and there wasn’t any major legislation out there that would affect your, is there 
anything out there now?  
 
Mr. Davis: As of now, no. There is nothing that would heavily impact us. We have made the 
appropriate steps, and are still here being good stewards of people’s money.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: There is a bill regarding the shared savings of the coordinated 
care agreement which would capture 100% federal medical assistance percentage (FMAP) 
if a tribe had a coordinated care agreement with a healthcare facility for that care. And in the 
event of a transfer to that facility, the department would be able capture 100% of that FMAP 
for that care. The reason we went into that arrangement would be to fund the cost for 
expanded Medicaid. Some states have done this and provided some money to the agency. 
Now I think that bill would share some of the savings with the tribes, that may have some 
consequences when getting to the human services side of things. Do you know where that 
is at in the process? 
 
(39.15) Mr. Davis: That FMAP is like a marriage. Without us ever expanding Medicaid 
coverage throughout the state, and now the tribal money that has come in from the federal 
government to help the tribes at 100%. Now we have a windfall of about 50%. With that 50%, 
the money that will come out of it, what will we do with that extra 50%? That’s where 
Representative Keizer has initiated this bill to allow to take the savings and escrow and share 
it 70/30 to the tribe and state, and all health related. A lot of tribes need help with treatment 
centers and dialysis chairs. This is something that the tribes have never had before but this 
is something new to the tribe members and could be beneficial to those that qualify for it.  
 
(42.41) Representative Lisa Meier: What are some of the issues with the native American 
youth?  
 
Mr. Davis: We have come to you guys to allocate money for a Native American youth 
leadership program. This will be our 10th year of doing that program. We have a large group 
of tribal youth groups in our state. There is a group that wants to do a state wide conference 
for the youth, not only the tribal youth but all youth.  
 
Representative Lisa Meier: Going forward with the youth, when are you looking at that 
conference happening? What would the participating rate be?  
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Mr. Davis: About June or July here in Bismarck and there would be a good turnout.  
 
Chris Kadrmas, Legislative Council: That bill that Chairman Nelson was talking about is 
HB1194. 
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: Where is it at in the process? 
 
Mr. Kadrmas: It was heard on the 15.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: So they haven’t acted on it yet?  
 
Mr. Kadrmas: No.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: Ok, I will look at that.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: One thing we would like to make you aware of, is that last week 
we have Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation (DOCR), and they are moving the 
women form New England to Missouri River Correctional Center (MRCC). We are in the 
process of taking a part of the population from MRCC and housing them in New England for 
a period of time. I am going to try to put together a conversation of industry and people down 
in that area. I would like to include you in that conversation due to the large amount of Native 
American inmates there to provide some job skills training in that facility. That part of the 
state has the most job openings, and the geography of South West ND could be used to their 
advantage. I would be interested in including you to find what industries would be best suited 
for employment for that area, and hopefully if this can be accomplished, we can repurpose 
that facility and train people for the jobs that may be open in the state.  
 
(48.41) Mr. Davis: Locally here we are working heavily on the services available. If we didn’t 
have services here like we do, then it would be tough to even get them. These types of 
services, healthcare services, are not available. We can easily have that conversation of that 
workforce development. It’s an investment on the industries part as well. I’ glad that both 
assemblies are trying to reinvent the area of incarceration. Giving people the opportunity to 
get certain felonies off their record will give people a chance to turn their life around. We are 
trying to get those people to be good tax paying members of society.  
 
(52.15) Chairman Jon O. Nelson: I appreciate that because I think that those skills that are 
needed for job growth is a win-win. That could really place New England in a stronger position 
as time goes on. If this is successful, I don’t think that it would make sense to move those 
men to the Jamestown facility because this is the area where most of the jobs exist in ND 
right now and I don’t think that is going to change in the next 6 years.   
 
NO FURTHER QUESTIONS OR TESTIMONY. 
REPRESENTATIVE BERT ANDERSON WILL CARRY THE BILL.  
MEETING CLOSED. 
 
ATTACHMENT B WAS EMAILED AND ATTACHED ON 1/23/2019. 
 

 



2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee - Human Resources Division 
Sakakawea Room, State Capitol 

HB1005 
2/1/2019 

32010 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk: Caitlin Fleck  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Taking amendments. 
 

Minutes:                                                 A 

 
Opened hearing.  
Took roll.  
 
Handed out attachment A.  
 
Sheila Sandness, Legislative Council: This is the worksheet that includes the executive 
recommendation, the changes from the executive, and the house budget in the middle. What 
is included in there is the base payroll changes, the effects of the 2&2, and the insurance 
package. That would add an increase of 17,811 to the base budget. The third column shows 
the differences in the house and recommended budgets. The house budget also doesn’t 
include the executive recommendation that was added.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: We would appreciate this type of diagram for all of our budgets. 
Do we need to adopt an amendment for that 2 & 2 salary change?  
 
Ms. Sandness: I would do that, just to have it on record. To be on the safe side I would 
include it in the wording and language.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: In full committee yesterday we had 1 budget where the executive 
recommendation was removed. Do we have to do that?  
 
Ms. Sandness: No, I think it was added in and then taken out in full committee. They had 
to take it out because there was an amendment added in. When you make changed to the 
bill, the middle column will change based on what you decide here.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: Under the funding changes, Scott suggested the elimination of 
the Indian Affairs Business Office. In the governor’s recommendation suggested that also, 
do we still have to take that out?  
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Ms. Sandness: Yes. 
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: When we take that out, that would be a larger negative number 
than the executive budget?  
 
Ms. Sandness: Yes, because the salary increase would be lower, so if you decide to move 
that into the middle column, there would be a reduction.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: I’ll ask for a 2 & 2 salary increase for this budget, and a 
grandfathered in insurance package that we currently have. Are there any other 
amendments? If not, I would also ask for an amendment to remove the Indian Affairs 
Business Office.  
 
Larry Martin, Office of Management and Budget: You’re just talking the funding here?  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: Yes.  
 
Vice Chairman Gary Kreidt: That would be a reduction of 35,144 because there is still 
some money left in there.  
 
Ms. Sandness: You would also include the base payroll changes?  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: Yes. Any further amendments? None seen. Sheila will include 
the amendments we asked for on a worksheet and then we will vote on them.  
 
Representative Richard G. Holman: did you calculate the 2 & 2 yet?  
 
Ms. Sandness: It is in the middle column. Would you like us to prepare that sheet first, and 
them prepare the formal amendment?  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: Yes. 
 
No further amendments. Meeting closed.   
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32067 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk: Caitlin Fleck  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Reviewing amendments.  
 
 

Minutes:                                                 A 

 
Opened hearing.  
Tool roll.  
 
Amendments were handed out (Attachment A).  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: Did we decided to not go with section 2, the section that allowed 
for federal money to be in their budget, is that existing language?  
 
Chris Kadrmas, Legislative Council: That is new language.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: They didn’t have that ability in the past?  
 
Mr. Kadrmas: No, but every agency has the ability to go to the emergency commission.  
 
Chairman Jon O. Nelson: Has every one had a chance to look at the worksheets? We will 
attempt to do this with one motion, instead of separately.  
 
Representative Randy A. Schobinger: Motion to move the amendments.  
 
Representative Lisa Meier: Seconded.  
 
Roll Call Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No, 1 Absent.  
 
Motion Carries.  

 
Vice Chairman Gary Kreidt: Moved Do Pass as amendment  
 
Representative Randy A. Schobinger: Seconded.  



House Appropriations Committee - Human Resources Division 
HB1005 
2/4/2019 
Page 2  
   

Roll Call Vote: 5 Yes, 0 No, 1 Absent.  
 
Motion carries.  
 
Floor assignment: Representative Bert Anderson  

 
Meeting concluded. 
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Appropriations Committee 
Roughrider Room, State Capitol 

HB 1005 
2/6/2019 

32273 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk Risa Bergquist 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Defraying the expenses of the Indian affairs commission. 

 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Delzer: Called HB 1005 to order 
 
Representative B. Anderson: Human Resources recommends approval of HB 1005, HB 
1005 has to do with the Indian Affairs Commission. Reviews the amendment 19.0193.01001. 
 
2:20 Representative B. Anderson: I make a motion to adopt amendment 19.0193.01001 
 
Representative J. Nelson: Second 
 
Chairman Delzer: Questions by the committee? If none we will do a voice vote.   
 
Voice vote was taken, All in Favor, motion carries  
 
Representative B. Anderson: Do pass as Amended 
 
Representative J. Nelson: Second 
 
Chairman Delzer: Further discussion? We will take a roll call vote.  
 
A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea:       20       Nay:       0      Absent:  1 
 
Motion Carries; Representative B. Anderson will carry the bill.  
 
Chairman Delzer: With that we will close this hearing.  
 
 
 
 















  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2019 SENATE APPROPRIATIONS 
 

HB 1005 

 

 

                                                                  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee 
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2/28/2019 

Job # 32971 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk:  Rose Laning / Carie Winings 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the Indian 

affairs commission. 

Minutes:                                                 Testimony Attached # 1. 

 
Legislative Council: Brady Larson  
OMB: Becky Deichert  
 
Chairman Holmberg called the committee to order on HB 1005.   
 
Scott Davis, Executive Director, North Dakota Indian Affairs Commission 
North Dakota Indian Affairs Commission Testimony - Attached # 1.  
  
Talked about responsibility of leadership and what’s the difference between making a 
difference versus making a statement.  Those who make a difference requires discipline, 
education, patience and understanding and this is what we’re all about.    
 
He introduced his staff:  
Brad Hawk - Indian Health Systems Administrator   
Erica Thunder – Judicial Systems Administrator (& Child Welfare) 
Marietta Kemmet - Administrative Assistant  
Leah McCloud – Administrative data (part time)  
 
Chairman Holmberg: You are aware that this committee, as the House did, removed the 
section regarding the 10% from all budgets.   In the executive recommendation, they talked 
about an open ended appropriation from any additional money from federal or other funds.  
That was put in a number of bills and the House removed that.  Some agencies have had 
this kind of authority before and others haven’t – and this would be new for you, right? 
In section 2 – “in addition to the amounts appropriated, there is appropriated any additional 
income from federal or other funds”.  It was section 2 in the governor’s recommendation. It’s 
not in the bill now and it wasn’t in last session’s session laws.    
 
Becky Deichert:  Yes, you are correct.  That was new language added.  
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Chairman Holmberg: As far as the dollar amounts that are in the budget; you’re satisfied 
with what the House did? (Becky Deichert indicated in the affirmative) We have not had any 
detente between us and the House yet on salary issues. We passed our out at 2and3 and 
the House passed theirs out at 2and2. We will have to get together and arm wrestle as to 
where we end up.  We also passed an $80/month minimum for all state employees in that 
salary package, but nothing will happen on that; at least until after the 11th or 12th   when we 
get our new budget forecasts. We will not be passing this bill out today.   
 
Senator Robinson:  We missed seeing your dad around this year.  Is he doing well? 
 
Scott Davis:  Yes, he is still going through his PT, but knowing him he will probably come in 
next week.  
 
Senator Robinson: The students that are attending tribal colleges, where is that funding 
bill? 
 
Scott Davis: That is in Higher ED.  
 
Senator Robinson: We had some discussion here yesterday with job service people 
regarding the absence of an office at Rolla and the 85-mile trek to Devils Lake.  There is a 
significant unemployment issue there. The discussion we had was on the possibility of a pilot 
project one day a week or something to provide services there.   What is the situation at 
Berthold and Fort Yates in terms of access to Job Service services?  
 
(10:50) Scott Davis: That is twofold. I look at that as part of Job Service but also part of 
workforce development that we are all heavily involved in.  When I look at the tribal colleges, 
and the money that they have received, I think some of them have done very well and some 
have had some hiccups on that. That is where I would turn to you, when it comes to jobs, 
that the return by appropriations given in creating jobs for students coming out of colleges. I 
look at the tribal college as a job service in a way, because they have that mission.   A couple 
years ago when we had to scale back on some of those allotments, the numbers showed 
they weren’t being used.   I’ve been pushing hard thru economic portfolio of mine. The rules 
of doing business on a reservation have been and need to further be discussed. I’ve been a 
strong proponent of private sector businesses on a reservation for those purposes. To get 
those unemployment rates down to hopefully meet our state rates. It is an anomaly for the 
reservations to have such high rates.  There are risky rules of doing business on the 
reservation in my opinion.  
 
Senator Robinson: You mentioned your father’s program that has been highly successful.  
Have there been efforts to replicate that in other areas?  I know it is easier said than done.  
What’s happening in Turtle Mountain has been exciting to hear about, and we need a lot 
more of that.  Where are we at in that process, and are we funding it at a level that we have 
the return on investment and realizing the potential that we could if there would be more 
support there?  It concerns me when I hear your comment regarding low unemployment 
statewide but that it is high on the reservation. We are looking for workers all over. Two years 
ago we had testimony about shining success stories of truck drivers getting good jobs.  
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Scott Davis:  There is a lot of effort. Some are very broad and some are small. Tribal 
leadership tries to track private businesses.  You have to legislate in a way that you can 
attract businesses on reservations. I have been adamant about that.  For most of us, our job 
is to try to legislate good tax policy and provide a way to do cheaper business in within our 
respective areas.  I think tribes need to really look at that. How do you attract your good 
workforce? I think it is kind of that ND small town mentality where some would rather stay 
home than go elsewhere to work.  There are so many jobs. In fact, I am trying to broker one 
now between private industry and some of the tribes to get more people to the oil fields again. 
It is a huge opportunity for someone who wants to take that and run.  I’ve been promoting 
that there are opportunities for work.  
 
Senator Robinson: The tribal colleges are central to this.  
 
Senator Grabinger: I see the cut to the business office funding. Can you explain how that 
will affect your operations? 
 
Scott Davis:  The allotment that we had to trim down was chosen because it is $100,000 
per biennium and if we could scale that back even by $30,000 and live with it and continue 
services and establish private businesses, we would do that.  That was reinstated on the 
House side, and I am feeling good about that. In that process, I have partnerships with 
foundations to help fund that. It is a mixed bag of how we fund a new business alliance. We 
do have an executive director and a board with multiple partnerships that focus on private 
sector jobs.  Through the budget process you have to look at your budgets and see how you 
can trim.  
 
(17:44) Senator Mathern:  I notice in Fargo, Bismarck, Grand Forks, and Minot there is an 
effort to develop service centers for Native people.  Does your office have resources to help 
in that regard or is that outside of your scope?   
 
Scott Davis:  That is a good question and that is also personal to me. My wife established a 
non-profit here in Bismarck/Mandan called the Native American Development Center. As you 
know half of us live on the reservation and half of us live off the reservation in North Dakota. 
I am an urban Indian. In the city of Bismarck/Mandan there are 4500 of us that work, go to 
school, and even are business owners. We come to the cities for opportunity.  Where can we 
go to get help that we are familiar with?  That is why we developed the center. Fargo has 
one with the Indian Affairs Commission.  It is more of a government entity. The focus is 
housing, jobs, and a place to go.  My wife works heavily on the criminal justice side. When 
people get out of prison they go to her office and look for help with work etc.  It’s always 
ongoing.  It is not a handout either. It’s a hand up – an empowerment type of system. It is 
challenging, but there is a consistent place where people can go to get services.  
 
Senator Mathern: Does your office provide services to these centers? 
 
Scott Davis:  No, our focus is always tribal nations and reservations.  
 
Senator Hogue: Leading up to the election there was an issue with the voter identification, 
and with certain members not having a street address either on their tribal ID or their driver’s 
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license; could you update us on where each of the tribes are at. Do they feel the situation is 
resolved at this point? Do they still have concerns?  
 
Scott Davis: That is a good question and it is one that has been floating in my office since 
the time of the new voter ID law that was passed a couple of sessions ago.  We did 
communicate with tribal leadership on that new legislation. We have had discussions with 
them and with the Secretary of State’s office. With the new street address and how that 
relates to 911, all that has changed.  It was a challenge and it was perceived as a way to 
disenfranchise tribal people from voting.  There was plenty of time to get a correct tribal or 
state ID.  Today, through the process of this last election, I think we are sitting very well with 
all the tribes because of the voter turnout. We had record turnout. In the debriefing with the 
Secretary of State, everybody had the correct and necessary ID.  I think that is in a good 
place. There is some ongoing discussion that should happen, but I am confident that 
Secretary of State Jaeger and Deputy Silrum are open to that.  We did everything we could 
to work with the county auditors and tribal enrollment, as well as DMV’s to make sure that 
everyone was ready with their correct ID.   
 
Senator Robinson: You mentioned that there are 4500 Native Americans in 
Bismarck/Mandan; do you have statistics regarding the employment of those people?   From 
the standpoint of Native Americans, that’s important.   
 
Scott Davis: We are working on the data sets on that. It takes some digging but we will get 
those numbers.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: Closed the hearing on HB 1005.  
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A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation to defray the expenses of the Indian 
Commission. (DO PASS AS AMENDED) 
 

Minutes:                                                 1.Proposed amendment # 19.0193.02002 

 
Chairman Holmberg: called the Committee to order on HB 1005.   All committee members 
were present except Senator Hogue.  Chris Kadrmas, Legislative Council and Larry Martin, 
OMB were also present.  
 
Chairman Holmberg:  We will open the hearing on the Indian Affairs commission with one 
amendment.  They were very happy with the budget. They had the only question was the 
salary and benefits.  The House had put in their 2% and 2% increases and we had been 
talking about a 2% increase the first year with a $80.00 minimum which helps more than half 
of the state employees, and then for the second year a 3 % increase.   What this means than  
instead of having made the decision collectively,  we will be doing it in 48  budget bills.  I had 
passed out the amendment, See Attachment # 1. The only difference is the salary and wages 
are up to 3% level, a slight increase over the House measure.    
 
Senator Robinson: moved the Amendment # 19.0193.02002. 2nd by Senator Grabinger.   
 
Senator Mathern: I went down to this little lunch deal at noon and the governor talked about, 
we shouldn’t be talking about either/or; we should be talking about and/and. We can do this 
and we can do that.  That there is plenty of money to do that. So I am wondering why you 
wouldn’t have gone with a 3 and 3 and that’s one question.  The second question is, is the 
$80.00 essentially bring this more than 2 or is the $80.00 minimum within the 2%, meaning 
somebody in highest income would get a little less so that the person at the lowest income 
would get at least $80.00?  
 
Chairman Holmberg: The people below will get a little more than 2%.  The lower end will 
get a little more than 2%. But, Chris, we also put in additional money.   
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Chris Kadrmas, Legislative Council: To give you an idea in this case, there was one 
individual that fell below the threshold so they received the $80.00 minimum so it’s actually 
$24.00 more than had it been just a straight 2% and 3%.     
 
Senator Mathern: We have an appropriation for the first year is really more than the straight 
2%.  It’s to make up those $24.00.  
 
Chris Kadrmas:  that would be correct, for the individuals who fall below.   
 
Chairman Holmberg: Is there $1,100,000 for the general fund?  And I can’t remember the 
special fund. So it is more money for the $80.00 minimum.  For the first question, why not, 
because we decided we were going to put more money into nursing homes, remember the 
executive budget had a 1 and 1% there, and that took some money.  And other needs and 
priorities of legislators. The budget numbers we have here for state employees is less than 
the executive budget, but the executive budget also had to be the assessment for health 
care, for employees that we have put the money in so there won’t be that change on health 
care.  The question of retirement, that hasn’t been settled, but that is separate from this.  I 
don’t know what the House is going to do.  I know the House has said what they would like 
to do.  The only thing they told us was that if the 1 and 1 was passed they would have it so 
that it wouldn’t go into effect until July 1, 2021, so that no state employee would receive that 
last 6 months a reduction in their salaries. That’s the latest word. It’s spreading the money 
around a little differently. Is there lots of money?  There is money. Is there a major difference 
between the House and the Senate as to how much is in the budget, how much is available 
revenue-wise, there are some differences.   
 
(0.05.58) Senator Mathern: I can accept that.  I had hoped that we would have pushed 
further yet in light of all of the talk on the governor’s part that we have the resources. We just 
overturned a veto where we actually even put more money in.   I hope in other places, we 
take the executive to task, where they say they can raise money and we make some 
amendments to create that condition.    
 
Chairman Holmberg:  All in the favor of amendment say aye.  it carried.  
 
Senator Grabinger:  Moved a Do Pass as Amended on HB 1005.  2nd by V. Chairman 
Krebsbach.    
 
A Roll Call vote was taken.  Yea: 13; Nay: 0; Absent: 1.  Chairman Holmberg will carry 
the bill.  
 
The hearing was closed on HB 1005.    
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